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HISTORY

The settlement of Queen Anne Hill began on the south
slope overlooking the newly developing city of Seattle.
in 1853, Thomas Mercer arrived from the East and filed

"his donation claim of 320 acres. He called it “Eden” and

it included all the land from what is now Highland Drive
to Mercer Street and east to Lake Union, which Mercer
was to give its name some years later. By 1873, Mercer
was selling new homesites on his land to eager buyers.

Mercer was a farmer and dairy man and, like many early
settlers, he became involved in lumber operations.
Yesler's mill was busy in 1853 producing lumber for sale
in California. The supply of wood seemed limitless and
readily available. Hillory Butler and George Frye were
early loggers on Queen Anne’s West side. Pioneer log-
ging operations were concentrated near water where they
could be easily floated to the mill. Later, oxen were used
to “skid” the logs over roads. Because of the accessibility
of Smith’s Cove, the West side of Queen Anne was logged
first. In 1886, David Denny established a mill on the south
shore of Lake Union creating an easy market for the wood
from the Eastern slope.

Seattle was originally incorporated in 1869 and the nor-
thern boundary was set at Galer (then Gaylor Street),
instead of expanding the city contracted and in 1875 the
limits were set back to Howell Street. McGraw street was
the northern boundary in 1883, and in 1891 the whole
hill became officially part of the City of Seattle.

Improvements were continually being made to attract new

- residents and small businesses to the hill. Many of the

first builders used the Queen Anne style of architecture
which was in fashion at the time and with the proliferation
of this style came the name “Queen Anne Town” which
later changed to Queen Anne Hill as styles changed. A
much needed street car line was established in the late
1880’s and served the residents to the foot of the hill.
However, the climb to the top was considered very incon-
venient. The First Street Cable Railway Company eventu-
ally extended the service to the top, where a business
district soon developed and still exists as the major busi-
ness community. Originally called “Temperance’”, the
steep hill climbed by cable cars was officially named
Queen Anne Avenue. The method of weights used to
pull the cars up the hill gave the street its common name,

the “Counterbalance” which lingers even though the cars
have been replaced.

Queen Anne residents demanded a school in 1889 and
they got West Queen Anne Elementary School. The
school registers read like a “Who's Who” in Seattle.
Other amenities came gradually. Many of Queen Anne’s
parks and viewpoints were donated by the hill’'s prominent
citizens. Others were given by real estate developers
intending that the amenity would encourage sales. B. F.
Day donated 8-1/2 acres as a park and playfield on the
northern crest of the hill. First named Evergreen Park, it
was renamed David Rodgers Park to honor a supervisor
in the shipbuilding firm of Skinner and Eddy. In 1891,
improvements were being made on the property donated
by George Kinnear, a beautiful retreat overlooking Puget
Sound. Albert Sperry Kerry and his wife donated a parcel
of land on Queen Anne’s southern slope in 1907. Now
called Kerry Park, this viewpoint park is a great tribute to
Mr. Kerry who showed his concern for the livability of the
city during his term on the Seattle Park Board and as
Director of the Alaska Yukon Pacific Exposition. More
recent additions have been made to the system of parks
on the hill such as the Reginald Parson’s garden, a private
estate given over to public use. In 1903, the Olmsted
report suggested that the hill would be particularly desir-
able place to live for those who enjoy a Sunday drive. The
present Queen Anne Boulevard is something less than
what the Olmsteds had in mind when they suggested a
150 foot wide boulevard with trees, etc. In 1906, East
Queen Anne residents finally insisted on a tree lined
street along the crest of the hill. The Park Department
relented. As the trees grew, however, attitudes changed
and you can now see large blocks of empty spaces where
influential people had trees removed from their views.

Queen Anne has had it’s share of both Seattle’s glory and
money. During the Gold Rush, many well-to-do people
found the views and closeness to the center of the city
desirable and built magnificent homes which are still
Seattle showplaces today. Though the architectural and
environmental fabric of the hill is changing with the intru-
sion of large apartment complexes into the neighbor-
hoods, the elegance of her past is still apparent in Queen
Anne as one of Seattle’s fine residential communities.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION

Queen Anne is a close-in, mainly residential community
of considerably varied social, economic, stylistic, and
topographic qualities. The setting is a centrally located hill
rising 450 feet from bodies of water or level ground on
all sides. Significant natural areas remain only on some of
the steep hillside slopes which have not yet been eco-
nomically feasible to develop. The top of the hill is more
level and generally is the location of smaller residences.
Queen Anne’s growth has taken place over more than a
century — almost from the inception of Seattle. Main
periods of development and prosperity appear to have
occurred during the first part of this century, largely in
single family homes both large and small. Later following
World War |l and especially in the 1960’s there was con-
siderable activity in the building of large contemporary
apartments along the view slopes, particularly on the
southerly portion.

The street pattern is that of Seattle’s typical grid system
with a few curving boulevards located along the edges of
the hill usually where suggested by the Oimsted Brother's
planning for the city in 1903. Several viewpoints expos-
ing impressive, dramatic and sweeping panoramas have
been developed as minor city parks. Other desirable

. publicly owned locations are yet available for a more

complete system of lookout places.

Queen Anne commands a dominant topographic posi-
tion and central location with its slopes visible from the
freeway as well as from downtown. The hill is frequently
silhouetted against the late evening sun giving promi-
nence to the buildings on the top. Queen Anne High
School is particularly commanding as are several utilitar-
ian landmarks, including the television, radio and water
towers. Another prominent but intrusive structure at the
lower level is the Port of Seattle Grain Terminal which
interferes with otherwise attractive views of Elliot Bay.
New high rise structures have caused similar concern
because of their unwelcome view-blocking forms on the
south slope.

The flat central portion of Queen Anne is conspicuously
lacking in the number and variety of urban design resour-
ces available along the edges of the hill. There is an ap-
parent difference in the man-built environment as well,
with the residential sections not equaling the variety and
quality of those along the slopes.

Public transportation has always been one of the strong-
est factors in determining community focus, consequent-
ly Queen Anne Avenue is very important as a central
spine to the neighborhood. The sense of enclosure and
controlled views along Queen Anne Avenue are deter-
mined by the topography, as well as by the apartment and
commercial buildings along this street which offers an
ambience and urbanity potentially rivaling San Francisco’s
Telegraph Hill.

Residential and building styles vary considerably and are
typically representative of the times when they were built.
There are relatively few contemporary structures although
the post-war apartments have been done in this manner,
of course. The larger residences still remaining are in the
eclectic styles prevalent from 1900 through the 1920’s.
Most of these are architect-designed in “English” or
Tudor Revival, or variations of Colonial Revival styles.
Smaller, middle-income residences are commonly from
popular builders stock plans usually in a scattered-lot
pattern although there are many series of two or more

~adjacent similar houses. These are in the form of the

“Classic Box”, Colonial, and with some “English” and
Shingle Style. The influence of the Craftsman Style is
apparent in the treatment of the eclectic styles of some
homes built during the heyday of that style from 1905 to
1920. Apartments and commercial structures range from
earlier, very plain massive rectangular brick and wooden
forms with a few affecting a more flamboyant eclectic
manner during the 1920’s and late 1930’s to the econom-
ical but ostentatious, often superficial appearances of the
slick contemporary work of the 1960’s. '

An arbitrary decision was made to not include the north
slope of Queen Anne Hill in this first inventory although
that area is an integral part of the community. Limitations
of time and volunteer interest were the main reason for
this action aithough there are differences in the character
of the northerly area from the area included. It is inten-
ded to cover this area in future surveys.

Some of the physical advantages of the Queen Anne com-
munity are its convenient,close-in location, established
relatively high-density residential character, excellent
views, and the fact that its topography negates its use as
a thoroughfare to other places thereby making it rather
isolated. The stylistic variations of the homes and build-
ings are less significant'thanthe general homogeneity of
residential character and use.

i 74
3 v ’

kil
o

' ////////

4

/)
\\:u\',é\“\}\ N v/
N
) Az ///,/,//2/7

Vil y K
T /////9 vy

i

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This map and inventory are projects of the Historic Seattle
Preservation and Development Authority; Executive Di-
rector, Lawson Elliott; Project Coordinator, Ann Brians;
Council Members, Ralph D. Anderson, Roberta K. Barr,
Kay Bullitt, James Crutcher, Brewster C. Denny, Polly
Friedlander, Victor O. Gray, David Ishii, Paul Hayden Kirk,
Geri Lucks, Louis Michaelson, Vicki Reed, Ben J. Smith,
Frank Soderling, and Bruce Zielsdorf; Inventory Review
Committee, Kay Bullitt, William Burns, Peggy Corley, Lee
Elliott, Earl Layman, Gerald Pomeroy, Vicki Reed, and
Art Skolnik.

Appreciation is tendered to the National endowment for
the Arts and the City of Seattle for financial assistance.

Urban design and architectural consultants. Folke Nyberg
and Victor Steinbrueck were responsible for the educa-
tional program and inventory review process as well as
this report.

Ann Brians as project coordinator for HSPDA was in
charge of administration and volunteer recruitment.

The inventory technical staff and their primary responsi-

bilities were:

John Owen — graphic preparation of community reports,
photography and data evaluation, and map graphics.

Elin Avery — field research, survey materials preparation,
and data evaluation.

Thomas Allsopp —' historic research and community
histories.

Meg Bouchard, Judy Johnson, Mike Krohn — assistance
in field and historic research, data tabulation, and office
work. ,

Eric Carlson — photographic processing.

Appreciation is extended to the representatives of the
following organizations who assisted in data collection
and research:

Queen Anne Community Council

Queen Anne Historical Society

The Historic Sites Committee of the Seattie Junior League
was most helpful in many ways in developing the inven-
tory process, actual field work and historic research.

Most importantly, the project was dependent upon the
work of volunteers listed here from the community, whose
cooperation and efforts were crucial to its success.

QUEEN ANNE VOLUNTEERS

Pauline Hanover
Denise Etcheson
Florencie Riley
Bunny Cohen
Rick Meyer
Nancy Hughbanks
Winnie Thompson
Susan Reichman
Jacqueline Le Bailly
Kathy Swinehart
Ben Bullitt

Rae Lorenz

Suzie Forbes
Joan Enticknap
Cliff Forbes

Judy Johnson
Dorri Delgado
Kathy Retalas

Dawn Jacobson
Virginia Klockzien
Janet Bush
Marcia Paulsell
Marilyn Redman
Sharon Lewis
Cathy Fredericks
Lee Blume

Glo Holcomb
Sandy Frederick
Mike Krohn

Joan Harpold
Jeanne Manning
Lee Elliott
Louise Locke
Sue Ragen

Meg Bouchard
Louise Zennan

The publishers and the authors assume no
legal responsibility for the completeness or
accuracy of the contents of this publication
or any legal responsibility for appreciation or
depreciation of the value of any premises
listed or not listed herein by reason of their
inclusion or omission in this publication.

Copyright © 1975 by Historic Seattle Preser-
vation and Development Authority. All rights
reserved. No part of this publication may be
reproduced or transmitted in any form or by
any means, electronic or mechanical, includ-
ing photocopy, recording or any information
storage or retrieval systems, without permis-
sion in writing from the publishers.

This project was made possible by a grant
from the National Endowment for the Arts

in Washington, D.C., a Federal Agency. Upon
recommendation of the National Council of
the Arts, the “City Options” program has been
designated a Bicentennial activity. Funds
were allocated to projects which can have a
demonstratable impact by 1976.



